

# Spreckels Community Services District SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS Wednesday December 14, 2022 5:30 pm

Spreckels Veterans Memorial Building, 5th & Llano, Spreckels, CA 93962

#### **AGENDA**

Agenda order may be adjusted by Chair for purposes of meeting flow and to be respectful of the time concerns of guests present.

- 1. CALL TO ORDER:
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
- 3. ROLL CALL & ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM:

Mike McTighe, President Amanda Lane, Vice-President Brian Amaral, Secretary Otto Kramm, Director Dallen Coronel, Director

- 4. ADDITIONS, CHANGES AND ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA:
- 5. CORRESPONDENCE:
- 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS: At this time any person may comment on any item which is not on the agenda. Please state your name and address for the record. Action will not be taken on any item that is not on the agenda. If it requires action, it will be referred to staff and/or placed on the next agenda. Board members may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as permitted by Government Code Section 54954.2. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity to speak, please limit comments to a maximum of five (5) minutes. Any member of the public may comment on any matter listed on this agenda at the time the matter is being considered by the Board of Directors.
- 7. NEW BUSINESS:
  - a. Review Draft Engineering Report: Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting and Drainage Assessment District.
- 8. ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING:

#### ADA COMPLIANCE

In compliance with the American Disabilities Act (ADA), disabled individuals requiring special accommodations to access, attend, or participate in District Board meetings, should contact the District Administrative Office, [831] 455-7855. To ensure that your request is granted please notify this office at least one business day prior to the scheduled public meeting.

<u>In Compliance with Government Code section 54957.5</u>, non-exempt writings that are distributed to a majority or all of the Board in advance of a meeting, may be viewed on the District website www.scsd.specialdistrict.org.

#### Certification

I, Paul J. Ingram, General Manager/Board Clerk for Spreckels Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing agenda was posted at least (24) hours prior to the December 14, 2022 Special Meeting of the District Board of Directors scheduled for 5:30 pm at Spreckels Veterans Memorial Building, 5<sup>th</sup> and Llano Streets Spreckels, CA 93962

Date /2/7/2022

Paul J. Ingram, General Manager

To download the full agenda packet, please go to www.scsd.specialdistrict.org and click on the meeting date. Click on the link to the agenda.

## Engineer's Report

# SPRECKELS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District

November 2022 Draft Report

**Engineer of Work:** 



4745 Mangels Boulevard Fairfield, California 94534 707.430.4300 www.sci-cg.com

## Spreckels Community Services District

District Board				
Mike Mctighe, Member				
Amanda Lane, Member				
Dallen Coronel, Member				
Otto Kramm, Member				
Brian Amaral, Member				
General Manager				
Paul Ingram				
Engineer of Work				
SCI Consulting Group				

## **Table of Contents**

District Board General Manager	
Engineer of Work	
Introduction	1
Overview	1
Assessment Process	2
Legislative Analysis	3
Proposition 218	3
Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v Santa Clara County Open Space	
Authority	4
Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property	
Bonander v. Town of Tiburon Beutz v. County of Riverside	2
Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego	5
Compliance with Current Law	5
Plans and Specifications	ε
Description of Improvements	$\epsilon$
Estimate of Cost and Budget Fiscal Year 2023-24	8
Method of Apportionment	g
Discussion of Benefit	ç
Benefit Factors	10
Proximity to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District Access to improved open space and landscaped areas within the Assessment	12
District	11
Improved views within the Assessment District	11
General versus Special Benefit	12
Zones of Benefit	14
Method of Assessment	15
Residential Properties	17
Commercial/Industrial Properties	18
Vacant Properties	20
Other Properties	20
Consumer Price Index Adjustments	21
Assessment Statement	22



Assessment Diagram 24
Assessment Roll 26

# List of Figures

Figure 1 – Estimate of Cost and Budget	8
Figure 2 – Summary of Combined Cost Estimate	22

#### Introduction

#### Overview

Spreckels Community Services District ("Spreckels CSD") was originally formed in 1989. As a special benefit assessment district, the purpose is the maintenance, improvement, and servicing of sidewalks and alleys, stormwater drainage, streetlights, and arrangements for garbage collection. Services providing support for fire and emergency medical services by the Spreckels Volunteer Fire Company were divested in 2015, resulting in substantial reduction in parcel assessments.

Under the District's Special Assessment, parcel assessments are much lower in the original community than in "New Town," the 73 lots developed after 2004. A draft engineer's report calculated that the annual cost of maintaining the District services in New Town were \$1,072 per dwelling unit. Currently, the District is charging \$455.18 per dwelling in New Town, but these assessments can be increased by the Board if actual District expenses indicate that an increase in assessments is needed. The District is subject to Proposition 218 limitations to assessing single family equivalency units in the Old Town a set rate of \$15.00 per year.

The assessment rate in Old Town does not include an annual "cost of living" increase, and therefore, the assessment rate for current services provided has remained static for over 30 years, while the cost of maintaining and servicing the Spreckels Community Services District improvements has increased. This has made it difficult to continue maintaining and servicing the Spreckels Community Services District at the same service level as when the Spreckels Community Services District was formed. In addition, common maintenance activities have been reduced and/or deferred. For instance, sidewalk areas need significant repairs or replacement. An increased revenue base, particularly in the Old Town area, is needed to bring revenues into better alignment with the actual costs of providing needed District services to the community, as well as to increase the District's ability to plan for, and fund, future infrastructure improvements. Therefore, this Engineer's Report ("Report") proposes that the Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District ("Assessment District") be formed, including a cost-of-living increase provision, to provide additional funding for maintenance, repairs and improvements in the town of Spreckels as time goes on.

#### **Assessment Process**

This Engineer's Report establishes the budget for the improvements ("improvements") and services to be undertaken by the Assessment District that will be funded by the proposed 2023-24 assessments and also determines the benefits received from the maintenance and improvements by property within the District as well as the method of assessment apportionment to lots and parcels. This Report and the proposed assessments have been made pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (the "Act") and Article XIIID of the California Constitution (the "Article").

Following the submittal of this Report to the Spreckels Community Services District Board of Directors ("Board") for preliminary approval, the Board may, by Resolution, call for an assessment ballot proceeding and Public Hearing on the establishment of the Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District.

If the Board approves such Resolution and calls for the mailing of notices and ballots, a notice of assessment and assessment ballot will be mailed to property owners at least 45 days prior to the date of the Public Hearing set by the Board. Such notice would include a description of the assessments as well as an explanation of the method of voting on the assessments. Each notice would include a ballot on which the property owner could mark his or her approval or disapproval of the assessments and a ballot return envelope.

After the ballots are mailed to property owners, a minimum 45-day time period must be provided for the return of the assessment ballots. Following this 45-day time period, a public hearing must be held for the purpose of allowing public testimony regarding the proposed assessments and services. At this hearing, the public would have the opportunity to provide input on this issue and would have a final opportunity to submit ballots. After the conclusion of the public input portion of the hearing, the hearing may be continued to a later time to allow time for the tabulation of ballots.

With the passage of Proposition 218 on November 6, 1996, The Right to Vote on Taxes Act, now Article XIIIC and XIIID of the California Constitution, the proposed assessments can be levied for fiscal year 2023-24 and future years, only if the ballots submitted in favor of the assessments are greater than the ballots submitted in opposition to the assessments. (Each ballot is weighted by the amount of proposed assessment for the property that it represents).



If it is determined, when the tabulation results are announced, that the assessment ballots submitted in opposition to the proposed assessments do not exceed the assessment ballots submitted in favor of the assessments (weighted by the proportional financial obligation of the property for which ballots are submitted) the Board may take action, by resolution, to approve the levy of the assessments for fiscal year 2023-24 and future fiscal years. If the assessments are so confirmed and approved, the levies would be submitted to the Monterey County Auditor for inclusion on the property tax rolls for fiscal year 2023-24.

If the Assessments are so confirmed and approved, the assessment information will be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller. The County Auditor/Controller will include the Assessments on the property tax roll for Fiscal Year 2023-24. The procedures for levy of the assessments in future years commence with the creation of a budget for the upcoming fiscal year's costs and services, an updated assessment roll listing all parcels and their proposed assessments for the upcoming fiscal year and the preparation of an updated Engineer's Report. After these documents are prepared and submitted, they could be reviewed and preliminarily approved by the Board at a public meeting. At this meeting, the Board could also call for the publication in a local newspaper of the intent to continue the assessment and set the date for a noticed public hearing. At the annual public hearing, members of the public could provide input to the Board prior to the Board's decision on continuing the services and assessments for the next fiscal year.

#### Legislative Analysis

#### **Proposition 218**

This assessment is formed consistent with Proposition 218, The Right to Vote on Taxes Act, which was approved by the voters of California on November 6, 1996, and is now Article XIIIC and XIIID of the California Constitution. Proposition 218 provides procedures and requirements for benefit assessments to be levied to fund the cost of providing services, improvements, as well as maintenance and operation expenses to a public improvement which benefits the assessed property.

Proposition 218 describes a number of important requirements, including a property-owner balloting, for the formation and continuation of assessments, and these requirements are satisfied by the process used to establish this assessment.



# Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v Santa Clara County Open Space Authority

In July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling in Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority ("SVTA vs. SCCOSA"). This ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the substantive assessment requirements of Proposition 218. Several of the most important elements of the ruling included further emphasis that:

- Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit
- The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly defined
- Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to property in the assessment district

#### Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property

On June 8, 2009, the 4<sup>th</sup> District Court of Appeal amended its original opinion upholding a benefit assessment for property in the downtown area of the City of Pomona. On July 22, 2009, the California Supreme Court denied review. On this date, Dahms became good law and binding precedent for assessments. In Dahms the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit (i.e. 0% general benefit) on the rationale that the services and improvements funded by the assessments were directly provided to property in the assessment district. This Court also upheld discounts and exemptions from the assessment for certain properties.

#### Bonander v. Town of Tiburon

On December 31, 2009, the 1<sup>st</sup> District Court of Appeal overturned a benefit assessment approved by property owners to pay for placing overhead utility lines underground in an area of the Town of Tiburon. The Court invalidated the assessments on the grounds that the assessments had been apportioned to assessed property based in part on relative costs within sub-areas of the assessment district instead of proportional special benefits.

#### Beutz v. County of Riverside

On May 26, 2010 the 4<sup>th</sup> District Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Steven Beutz v. County of Riverside ("Beutz") appeal. This decision overturned an assessment for park maintenance in Wildomar, California, primarily because the general benefits associated with improvements and services were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated from the special benefits.



#### Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego

On September 22, 2011, the 4<sup>th</sup> District Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego appeal. This decision overturned an assessment for street and landscaping maintenance in the Greater Golden Hill neighborhood of San Diego, California. The court described two primary reasons for its decision. First, like in Beutz, the court found the general benefits associated with services were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated from the special benefits. Second, the court found that the City had failed to record the basis for the assessment on its own parcels.

#### **Compliance with Current Law**

This Engineer's Report is consistent with the requirements of Article XIIIC and XIIID of the California Constitution and with the *SVTA* decision because the assessments are for special, not general, benefit; the improvements to be funded are clearly defined; the improvements are directly available to and will directly benefit property in the Assessment District; and the improvements provide a direct advantage to property in the Assessment District that would not be received in absence of the Assessments.

This Engineer's Report is consistent with *Dahms* because, similar to the Downtown Pomona assessment validated in *Dahms*, the services will be directly provided to property in the Assessment District. Moreover, while *Dahms* could be used as the basis for a finding of 0% general benefits, this Engineer's Report establishes a more conservative measure of general benefits.

This Engineer's Report is consistent with *Beutz, Dahms and Greater Golden Hill* because the improvements will directly benefit property in the Assessment District and the general benefits have been explicitly calculated and quantified and excluded from the Assessments. The Engineer's Report is consistent with *Bonander* because the Assessments have been apportioned based on the overall cost of the improvements and proportional special benefit to each property.



#### **Plans and Specifications**

The formula below describes the relationship between the final level of services, the baseline level of service based on existing funding, and the enhanced level of services funded by the assessment if it is approved. It should be noted, due to the fact that current operating costs are increasing at a faster rate than current funding sources, the baseline level of services is diminishing over time.

Final Level of	=	Current Baseline Level	+	Proposed Enhanced
Service		of Service		Level of Service

Below is a more detailed description of these improvements that are provided for the special benefit of property in the Assessment District.

The existing Spreckels Community Services District Assessment District maintains improvements in locations throughout its boundaries. The work and improvements to be undertaken by the new formation of Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District, and the cost thereof paid from the levy of the annual assessment, will provide special benefit to Assessor Parcels within the District as defined in the Method of Assessment herein. Consistent with the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, (the "Act") the improvements, maintenance and services are generally described as follows in the section below.

#### **Description of Improvements**

Within the Spreckels Community Services District, the improvements to be maintained from this new assessment are generally described as including, but not limited to the installation, maintenance and servicing of trees, storm drainage systems, sidewalk maintenance, and all necessary appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities and equipment, as applicable, for specified public property within the District boundaries that convey special benefits to private properties within the District.

As applied herein, "maintenance" means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation and servicing of the improvements, including repair, removal or replacement of all or any part of any improvement; providing for the life, growth, health, and beauty of landscaping including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilization, or treating for diseases or injury; removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid waste and the cleaning, sandblasting, and painting and other improvements to remove or cover graffiti.



"Servicing" means the furnishing of electric current, or energy, gas or other illuminating agent for any public lighting facilities or for the lighting or operation of any improvements maintaining, operating and servicing street and traffic safety lighting, and water for irrigation of any landscaping; maintaining, operating and servicing street and traffic safety lighting, or the maintenance of any other improvements not covered by the original Spreckels Community Services District.

"Maintenance and Improvements" ("M&I") identifies the type of improvement (e.g., replacing a corridor of sidewalk); the estimated cost; any installments required for short-term (less than five years) and long term (not greater than 30 years) improvements, and the approximate schedule for completion of the improvements. These M&I are funded by fund balance monies. Fund balance monies are monies that have been collected in prior years in anticipation of being used for specific improvements and/or are intended for replacement or improvement of capital items (e.g. sidewalk, curb, drain) within a district.

Incidental expenses include all of the following: (a) The costs of preparation of the report, including plans, specifications, estimates, diagram, and assessment; (b) the costs of printing, advertising, and the giving of published, posted, and mailed notices; (c) compensation payable to the County for collection of assessments; (d) compensation of any engineer or attorney employed to render services in proceedings pursuant to this part; (e) any other expenses incidental to the construction, installation, or maintenance and servicing of the improvements; (f) any expenses incidental to the issuance of bonds or notes pursuant to Streets & Highways Code Section 22662.5; and (g) costs associated with any elections held for the approval of a new or increased assessment (Streets & Highways Code §22526).

## Estimate of Cost and Budget Fiscal Year 2023-24

Figure  ${\bf 1}$  – Estimate of Cost and Budget

Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage assessment District Estimated Budget 2023-24			
O mark Burianta and O mark Maintanana			
Current Projects and General Maintenance			
Scheduled	\$6,605.00		
Proposed Projects			
Sidewalk replacement	\$5,653.33		
Curb repair	\$351.48		
Tree maintenance	\$31,455.00		
Streetlight installation	\$80.00		
Storm drain catch basin cleaning	\$2,145.00		
Pump station	\$4,500.00		
Curb planting outreach	\$8,000.00		
Repay Overage	x		
Incidental Costs			
Administration/Contracts/others	\$2,500.00		
Total	\$61,289.81		
	. ,		
Assessment to Property			
Total SFE Assessmen	t Assessment		
Units per SF	E Total		
280.0 \$218.8			
	- +,		
Total	\$61,289.81		



#### Method of Apportionment

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived from the proposed additional maintenance and servicing of the improvements and the methodology used to apportion the total assessment to properties within the Assessment District.

The Assessment District consists of all Assessor Parcels within the boundaries defined by the Assessment Diagram included within this report and the Assessor Parcel Numbers listed within the included Levy Roll. The parcels include all privately or publicly owned parcels within the boundaries. The method used for apportioning the assessment is based upon the proportional special benefits to be derived by the properties in the Assessment District over and above general benefits conferred on real property or to the public at large. The apportionment of special benefit is a two-step process: the first step is to identify the types of special benefit arising from the improvements, and the second step is to allocate the assessments to property based on the estimated relative special benefit for each type of property.

#### Discussion of Benefit

In summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property. This benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits. Moreover, such benefit is not based on any one property owner's use of the Assessment District's other improvements covered by the Assessment or a property owner's specific demographic status. With reference to the requirements for assessments, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 states:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment district may be apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net amount among all assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by each such lot or parcel from the improvements."

Proposition 218, as codified in Article XIIID of the California Constitution, has confirmed that assessments must be based on the special benefit to property:

"The proportionate special benefit derived by each identified parcel shall be determined in relationship to the entirety of the capital cost of a public improvement, the maintenance and operation expenses of a public improvement, of the cost of the property related service being provided. No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel."



Below is a summary of the types of special benefit to residential and other lots and parcels resulting from the installation, maintenance and servicing of landscaping including trees, sidewalks, and other improvements to be provided with the assessment proceeds. These categories of special benefit are derived from the statutes passed by the California Legislature and other studies which describe the types of special benefit received by property from maintenance and servicing of improvements such as those proposed by the Assessment District. These types of special benefit are summarized as follows:

- 1. Proximity to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District.
- 2. Access to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District.
- 3. Improved views within the Assessment District.

In this case, the SVTA v. SCCOSA decision provides enhanced clarity to the definitions of special benefits to properties in three distinct areas:

- Proximity
- Expanded or improved access
- Views

Tree trimming falls well within the 1972 l&l act. The SVTA v. SCCOSA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or improvement that provides a direct advantage to a parcel and that indirect or derivative advantages resulting from the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are general benefits. The SVTA v. SCCOSA decision also provides specific guidance that park improvements are a direct advantage and special benefit to property that is proximate to a park that is improved by an assessment:

the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives a direct advantage from the improvement (e.g. proximity to a park) or receives an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the improvement (e.g. general enhancement of the district's property values).

Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed above further strengthen the basis of these assessments.

#### **Benefit Factors**

The special benefits from the improvements are further detailed below:



#### Proximity to improved landscaped areas within the Assessment District

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the improvements are included in the Assessment District. Therefore, property in the Assessment District enjoys unique and valuable proximity and access to the improvements that the public at large and property outside the Assessment District do not share.

In absence of the assessments, the improvements and the landscaping areas in the Assessment District would be degraded due to insufficient funding for maintenance, upkeep and repair. Therefore, the assessments provide improvements that are over and above what otherwise would be provided. Improvements that are over and above what otherwise would be provided do not by themselves translate into special benefits but when combined with the unique proximity and access enjoyed by parcels in the Assessment District, they provide a direct advantage and special benefit to property in the Assessment District.

# Access to improved open space and landscaped areas within the Assessment District

Since the parcels in the Assessment District are nearly the only parcels that enjoy close access to the improvements, they directly benefit from the unique close access to improved landscaping areas that are provided by the Assessments. This is a direct advantage and special benefit to property in the Assessment District.

#### Improved views within the Assessment District

The City, by maintaining these landscaped areas, provides improved views to properties in the Assessment District. The properties in the Assessment District enjoy close and unique proximity, access and views of the improvements; therefore, the improved and protected views provided by the Assessments are another direct and tangible advantage that is uniquely conferred upon property in the Assessment District.



#### General versus Special Benefit

The proceeds from the proposed Assessment District would be used to fund increased levels of maintenance and improvement to the grounds and public resources proximate to the properties in the Assessment District. The Assessment District is specifically proposed for formation to provide additional resources in the Assessment District. In absence of the new assessments from the proposed Assessment District, the current revenues are not sufficient for the proper and adequate maintenance of the landscaping, including trees, sidewalks and other public resources in the Spreckels Community Services District and the public resources in the Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage District would continue to deteriorate further, which would clearly adversely affect the value and desirability of properties in the Assessment District. Therefore, the assessments solely provide special benefit to property in the Assessment District over and above the general benefits conferred by the general facilities of the District.

Although these improvements may be available to the general public at large, the landscaping within the Assessment District is specifically designed, located and created to provide additional and improved public resources for property inside the Assessment District, and not the public at large. Other properties that are either outside the Assessment District or within the Assessment District and not assessed, do not enjoy the unique proximity, access, views and other special benefit factors described previously. These improvements are of special benefit to properties located within the Assessment District because they provide a direct advantage to properties in the Assessment District that would not be provided in absence of the Assessments.

Special Note Regarding General Benefit and the SVTA v. SCCOSA Decision: There is no widely-accepted or statutory formula for calculating general benefit. General benefits are benefits from improvements or services that are not special in nature, are not "particular and distinct" and are not "over and above" benefits received by other properties. The SVTA vs. SCCOSA decision provides some clarification by indicating that general benefits provide "an indirect, derivative advantage" and are not necessarily proximate to the improvements.

Although the analysis used to support these assessments concludes that the benefits are solely special (i.e., benefits are 100% special and 0% general), as described above, consideration is made for the suggestion that a portion of the benefits are general. General benefits cannot be funded by these assessments - the funding must come from other sources.

The maintenance and servicing of these improvements is also partially funded, directly and indirectly from other sources including Spreckels Community Services District, the County of Monterey and the State of California. This funding comes in the form of grants, development fees, special programs, and general funds, as well as direct maintenance and



servicing of facilities (e.g. streets, drainage systems, etc.) This funding from other sources more than compensates for general benefits, if any, received by the properties within the assessments district.

Commented [CC1]: District does not own the streets

In the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit on the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided within the assessment district. It is also important to note that the improvements and services funded by the assessments in Pomona are similar to the improvements and services funded by the Assessments described in this Engineer's Report and the Court found these improvements and services to be 100% special benefit. Also similar to the assessments in Pomona, the Assessments described in this Engineer's Report fund improvements and services directly provided within the Assessment District and every benefiting property in the Assessment District enjoys proximity and access to the improvements. Therefore, Dahms establishes a basis for minimal or zero general benefits from the Assessments.

#### Step 1: Calculation of the General Benefit

The general benefits from this assessment for Spreckels Community Services District may be quantified as the following:

Motorists traveling along Spreckels Boulevard, Railroad Avenue, Llano Avenue, Harkins Road; and First, Second, Third, Fourth and Fifth Streets who are not property owners do not interact with Town of Spreckels properties in any way (for example, delivery trucks to properties within the boundary do not contribute to general benefit) may receive some benefit from the improved landscaping, and views funded from this proposed assessment. This benefit can be described as general benefit and should not be funded from the new proposed assessment. However, the majority of benefit from the improved landscaping is conferred to the properties within the assessment district who enjoy the improvements along these major thoroughfares and the improvements to the interior of the Town of Spreckels and for much longer periods of time. A liberal estimate of the general benefit conferred to motorists and other travelers along the exterior thoroughfares who do not own property or engaged the properties in any way, considering the number of daily trips to the properties and the duration of time enjoying the improvements is 20%. Therefore, 20% of the funding for the proposed improvements must come from a source other than this proposed assessment.

Step 2: Calculation of Current General Benefit Contribution from District

The general benefit contribution is satisfied from the sum of the following components:

Commented [SM2]: Should be "Hatton Avenue"? Becomes Harkins Road outside of SCSD Boundaries from Spreckels to Abbot

Engineer's Report, FY 2023-24



The Spreckels Community Services District owns, maintains, rehabilitates and replaces curb and gutter along the border of the Assessment District's improvements. This curb and gutter services to support, contain, retain, manage irrigation flow and growth, and provide a boundary for the improvements. The contribution from the Spreckels Community Services District toward general benefit from the maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement of the curb gutter is conservatively estimated to be 1%.

The Spreckels Community Services District owns and maintains storm drainage systems along the border of the Assessment District's improvements. This system serves to prevent flooding and associated damage to the improvements, and manage urban runoff including local pollutants loading from the improvements. The contribution from the Spreckels Community Services District towards general benefit from the maintenance and operation of the local storm drainage systems is conservatively estimated to be 1%.

The Spreckels Community Services District wwns and maintains local public sidewalks along the border of the Assessment District improvements. These public sidewalks provide access to the improvements for its enjoyment as well as efficient maintenance. The contribution from the Spreckels Community Services District towards general benefit from the maintenance of local public sidewalks is conservatively estimated to contribute 1%.

Many of the improvements to be serviced by the proposed Assessment District were constructed by the original owner/developer(s) as a condition of development. The value of the construction of the improvements can be quantified and monetized as an annuity. Since this construction was performed and paid by non-assessment funds, this "annuity" can be used to offset general benefit costs, and is conservatively estimated to contribute 25%.

Therefore, the total General Benefit that is conservatively quantified at 20% is more than offset by the total non-assessment contribution towards general benefit of 28%.

#### **Zones of Benefit**

The creation of zones of benefit, corresponding to these various areas, are routinely considered in the development of an assessment district. As part of the engineering work for this assessment, an analysis was conducted on the relationship (including proximity, level of service, etc.), between properties and the primary improvements located throughout the Assessment District.

The geography, topography, and the access and proximity to the improvements within the District is relatively consistent, and hence different zones of benefit are not appropriate.

Commented [CC3]: Confirm

Commented [CC4]: Confirm



Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage assessment District Engineer's Report, FY 2023-24



#### Moreover, the SVTA decision indicates:

In a well-drawn district — limited to only parcels receiving special benefits from the improvement — every parcel within that district receives a shared special benefit. Under section 2, subdivision (i), these benefits can be construed as being general benefits since they are not "particular and distinct" and are not "over and above" the benefits received by other properties "located in the district."

We do not believe that the voters intended to invalidate an assessment district that is narrowly drawn to include only properties directly benefiting from an improvement. Indeed, the ballot materials reflect otherwise. Thus, if an assessment district is narrowly drawn, the fact that a benefit is conferred throughout the district does not make it general rather than special. In that circumstance, the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the parcel receives a direct advantage from the improvement (e.g., proximity to park) or receives an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the improvement (e.g., general enhancement of the district's property values).

In the proposed Assessment District, the advantage that each assessed parcel receives from the improvements is direct, and the boundaries include only parcels that benefit from the assessment, other than the parcels that provide the benefit to the properties. Therefore, the even spread of assessment throughout is indeed consistent with the SVTA decision and satisfies the "direct relationship to the "locality of the improvement" standard.

#### **Method of Assessment**

As previously discussed, the proposed assessments will provide additional maintenance and servicing of existing improvements that will clearly confer special benefits to properties in the Assessment District. The allocation of special benefits to property is partially based on the type of property and the size of property. These benefits can also partially be measured by the occupants on property in the Assessment District because such parcel population density is a measure of the relative benefit a parcel receives from the improvements. It should be noted that many other types of "traditional" assessments also use parcel population densities to apportion the assessments. For example, the assessments for sewer systems, roads and water systems are typically allocated based on the population density of the parcels assessed. Therefore, the apportionment of benefit is reasonably based the type of parcel, the size of parcels and the population density of parcels.



The primary step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit for each property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each property in relation to a single-family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute assessments in proportion to estimated special benefit and is generally recognized as providing the basis for a fair and appropriate distribution of assessments. For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, all properties are designated an SFE value, which is each property's relative benefit in relation to a single-family home on one parcel. In this case, the "benchmark" property is the single-family detached dwelling which is one Single Family Equivalent or one SFE that currently total to 600.

Moreover, a fixed or flat assessment for all commercial properties of similar type was deemed to be inappropriate because larger commercial properties receive a higher degree of benefit than other similarly used properties that are significantly smaller. (For two properties used for commercial purposes, there is clearly a higher benefit provided to the larger property in comparison to a smaller commercial property because the larger property generally supports a larger building and has higher numbers of employees, customers and guests that would benefit from proximity and improved access to well maintained improvements and improved landscaped areas. So the potential population of employees or residents is a measure of the special benefits received by the property.) Larger parcels, therefore, receive an increased benefit from the assessments.

Finally, the special benefits to be derived from the proposed assessments will be conferred on property and are not based on a specific property owner's use of the improvements, or a specific property owner's occupancy of property or the property owner's demographic status such as age or number of dependents. However, it is ultimately people who value the special benefits described above and use and enjoy the Assessment District's landscaped areas. In other words, the benefits derived to property are related to the average number of people who could potentially live on, work at, or otherwise could use a property, not how the property is currently used by the present owner. Therefore, the number of people who could or potentially live on, work at or otherwise use a property is one indicator of the relative level of benefit received by a property.

In conclusion, the Assessment Engineer determined that the appropriate method of assessment apportionment should be based on the type and use of property, the relative size of the property, its relative population and usage potential and its proximity to improvements and landscaped areas. This method is further described below.



#### **Residential Properties**

Certain residential properties in the Assessment District that contain a single residential dwelling unit are assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE. Detached or attached houses, zero-lot line houses and town homes are included in this category of single-family residential property. If there is more than one single-family detached dwelling on a parcel, it will be charged one SFE per single-family detached dwelling.

Properties with more than one residential unit (other than parcels with more than one detached single-family dwelling as described above) are designated as multi-family residential properties. These properties benefit from the improvements in proportion to the number of dwelling units that occupy each property, the average number of people who reside in multi-family residential units versus the average number of people who reside in a single-family home and the relative size of each type of residential dwelling unit. The population density factors for the area in Monterey County encompassing the Assessment District, as depicted in the following table, provide the basis for determining the SFE factors for residential properties. Using the total population in a certain property type in the area from the 2020 ACS 5Year estimate and dividing it by the total number of such households, finds that approximately 2.46 persons occupy each single-family residence, whereas an average of 2.17 persons occupy each duplex. The ratio of 2.46 people on average for a single-family residence and 2.17 people per dwelling unit in a duplex unit results in a population density equivalent of 0.88 for condominiums. Next, the relative building areas are factored into the analysis because special benefits are related to the average size of a property, in addition to average population densities. For a duplex, this calculation results in an SFE factor of 0.55 per dwelling unit. Should ADUs be developed within the Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage assessment District, the assessment would be 1 SFE for the primary SFR and 0.55 for the ADU. A similar calculation is used for the SFE Rates for other residential property types.

TABLE 1 - RESIDENTIAL DENSITY AND ASSESSMENT FACTORS

	Po	p. Density	SqFt	SFE
Type of Residential Property		Equivalent	Factor	Factor
Single Family Residential		1.00	1.00	1.00
Duplex, Triplex, Fourplex		0.88	0.63	0.55
Multi-Family Residential (5+ Units)		1.16	0.47	0.54

The single-family equivalency factor of 0.54 per dwelling unit for multi-family residential properties applies to such properties with 20 or fewer units. Properties in excess of 20 units typically offer on-site recreational amenities and other facilities that tend to offset some of the benefits provided by the improvements. Therefore, the benefit for properties in excess of 20 units is determined to be 0.54 SFE per unit for the first 20 units and 0.25 SFE per each additional unit in excess of 20 dwelling units.

#### Commercial/Industrial Properties

SFE values for commercial and industrial land uses are based on the equivalence of special benefit on a land area basis between single-family residential property and the average commercial/industrial property. The SFE values for various commercial and industrial land uses are further defined by using average employee densities because the special benefit factors described previously can be measured by the average number of people who work at commercial/industrial properties.

In order to determine employee density factors, the findings from the San Diego Association of Governments Traffic Generators Study (the "SANDAG Study") are used because these findings were approved by the State Legislature as being a good representation of the average number of employees per acre of land area for commercial and industrial properties. As determined by the SANDAG Study, the average number of employees per acre for commercial and industrial property is 24.

In comparison, Census data shows that the average number of people residing in a single-family home in the area is 2.66. Since the average lot size for a single-family home in the Assessment District is approximately 0.20 acres, the average number of residents per acre of residential property is 13.30.



The employee density per acre is generally 1.80 times the population density of single-family residential property per acre (24 employees per acre / 13.30 residents per acre). Therefore, the average employee density can be used as the basis for allocating benefit to commercial or industrial property since a commercial/industrial property with 4.8 employees receives generally similar special benefit to a residential property with 1 resident. This factor of equivalence of benefit between 1 resident to 4.8 employees is the basis for allocating commercial/industrial benefit. Table 2 below shows the average employees per acre of land area or portion thereof for commercial and industrial properties and lists the relative SFE factors per quarter acre for properties in each land use category.

Commercial and industrial properties in excess of 5 acres generally involve uses that are more land intensive relative to building areas and number of employees (lower coverage ratios). As a result, the benefit factors for commercial and industrial property land area in excess of 5 acres is determined to be the SFE rate per quarter acre for the first 5 acres and the relevant SFE rate per each additional acre over 5 acres.

Institutional properties that are used for residential, commercial or industrial purposes are also assessed at the appropriate residential, commercial or industrial rate.

TABLE 2 - COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL DENSITY AND ASSESSMENT FACTORS

Type of Commercial/Industrial Land Use	Average Employees Per Acre <sup>1</sup>	SFE Units per Quarter Acre <sup>2</sup>	SFE Units per Acre After 5
Commercial	24	0.500	0.500
Office	68	1.420	1.420
Shopping Center	24	0.500	0.500
Office	24	0.500	0.500
Self Storage or Parking Lot	1	0.021	
Golf Course	0.80	0.033	
Cemeteries	0.10	0.004	
Agriculture	0.05	0.002	

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1.</sup> Source: San Diego Association of Governments Traffic Generators Study.



<sup>2.</sup> The SFE factors for commercial and industrial parcels are applied by the quarter acre of land area or portion thereof. (Therefore, the minimum assessment for any assessable parcel in these categories is the SFE Units listed herein.) The rates apply up to first 5 acres of parcel size. Additional acreage is benefited at the rate shown above per acre or portion thereof.

The itinerant housing located in the Southern industrial area of the District is determined to receive limited special benefit. However, some special benefit is received from the improvements, such as proximity access to the improvements, and safety from falling trees. This special benefit is calculated at 10% of a single family home equivalency unit, per residential unit.

#### **Vacant Properties**

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value of land in relation to improvements for developed property. An analysis of the assessed valuation data from the County of Sacramento found that approximately 25% of the assessed value of improved properties is classified as the land value. It is reasonable to assume, therefore, that approximately 25% of the benefits are related to the underlying land and 75% are related to the improvements and the day-to-day use of the property. Using this ratio, the SFE factor for vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

#### **Other Properties**

Article XIIID stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is clear and convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the assessment.

All properties that are specially benefited are assessed. Other publicly owned property that is used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional uses is benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property.

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels, limited access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically do not generate employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these parcels have limited economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific enhancement of property value. Such parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and are not assessed.



#### **Consumer Price Index Adjustments**

The maximum assessment rate within the Assessment District may be increased by an amount equal to the annual change in the San Francisco Bay Area Consumer Price Index, not to exceed 3% per year. In the event that the annual change in the CPI exceeds 3%, any percentage change in excess of 3% can be cumulatively reserved and can be added to the annual change in the CPI for years in which the CPI change is less than 3%.

#### **Assessment Statement**

The District Board of the Spreckels Community Services District, County of Monterey, California, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XIIID of the California Constitution (collectively "the Act"), directed the formation of the Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District;

The Board directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and file a report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the Assessment District and an assessment of the estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels within the Assessment District, to which the description of the proposed improvements is therein contained, reference is hereby made for further particulars;

The undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under the Act and the order of the District Board of the Spreckels Community Services District, hereby make the following assessment to cover the portion of the estimated cost of the improvements, and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by the Assessment District.

The amount to be paid for the improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be paid by the Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District for the fiscal year 2023-24 is generally as follows:

Figure 2 – Summary of Combined Cost Estimate

Current Projects and General Maintenance Proposed New Projects	\$6,605.00 \$52,184.81
Repay Overage Incidential Costs	x \$2,500.00
Net Amount to Assessment	\$61,289.81

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof showing the exterior boundaries of the Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District. The distinctive number of each parcel or lot of land in the District is its Assessor Parcel Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.



And I do hereby assess and apportion the net amount of the cost and expenses of the improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and lots of land within the Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District, in accordance with the special benefits to be received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set forth in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made a part hereof.

The assessment is made upon the parcels or lots of land within the Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District in proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of land, from the improvements.

The assessment is subject to an annual adjustment tied to the Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco Bay Area as of December of each succeeding year (the CPI), with the maximum annual adjustment not to exceed 3%. In the event that the actual assessment rate for any given year is not increased by an amount equal to the CPI change, any such deferred assessment increase may be added to the total amount assessed in any subsequent year. In such event, the maximum authorized assessment amount shall be equal to the base year assessment as adjusted by the increase to the CPI, plus any and all CPI adjustments deferred in any and all prior years. (This mechanism may be applied to the capital improvements and deferred and ongoing maintenance portions of the assessment.)

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Monterey for the fiscal year 2023-24. For a more particular description of the property, reference is hereby made to the deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder of the County.

I hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the Assessment Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2023-24 for each parcel or lot of land within the Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District.

Dated: December 5, 2022

Engineer of Work

By Rv.

John W. Bliss, License No. C52091

**SCIConsultingGroup** 

## **Assessment Diagram**

The boundaries of the Spreckels Community Services District Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District in the Town of Spreckels are displayed on the following Assessment Diagram.

#### **Assessment Roll**

An Assessment Roll (a listing of all parcels assessed within the Landscaping, Lighting, and Drainage Assessment District and the amount of the assessment) has been filed with the County Clerk and is, by reference, made part of this report and will be available for public inspection during normal office hours.

Each lot or parcel listed on the Assessment Roll is shown and illustrated on the latest County Assessor records and these records are, by reference made part of this report. These records shall govern for all details concerning the description of the lots or parcels.